ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 3, 2012
1:37 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lance Pruitt, Vice Chair
Representative Eric Feige

Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Munoz
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representative Craig Johnson

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 212
"An Act relating to requirenments for persons hol ding provisional
drivers' licenses."

- MOVED CSHB 212(TRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 212

SHORT TI TLE: PROVI SI ONAL DRI VER' S LI CENSE STI CKER
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) M LLETT BY REQUEST

03/ 29/ 11 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 29/ 11 (H) STA, TRA, FIN

03/ 13/ 12 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 13/ 12 (H Moved CSHB 212( STA) Qut of Conmittee
03/ 13/ 12 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 14/ 12 (H STA RPT CS(STA) 3DP 3NR

03/ 14/ 12 (H) DP: JOHANSEN, KELLER, PETERSEN
03/ 14/ 12 (H NR: GRUENBERG SEATON, LYNN

03/ 27/ 12 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 27/ 12 (H Heard & Held

03/ 27/ 12 (H M NUTE( TRA)

04/ 03/ 12 (H TRA AT 1: 30 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- April 3, 2012



JESSI CA LU KEN, Sel f

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 212 as a Cose-Up student
requestor of the bill, on behalf of the sponsor, Representative
Charisse Ml lett.

M LES BROCKES, St aff

Representative Max G uenberg

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on anmendnents to HB 212 on behal f
of Representative Max G uenberg.

JEFF TURNER, St aff

Representative Charisse MIlett

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 212.

VWH TNEY BREWSTER, Director

Di vision of Mdtor Vehicles (DW)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 212.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:37:03 PM

VICE CHAIR LANCE PRU TT call ed the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:37 p.m Representatives Feige,
Gruenberg, Petersen, and Pruitt were present at the call to

order. Representative Moz arrived as the neeting was 1in
pr ogr ess.

HB 212- PROVI SI ONAL DRI VER S LI CENSE STI CKER

1:37:26 PM

VICE CHAIR PRU TT announced that the only order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 212, "An Act relating to requirenents
for persons holding provisional drivers' licenses."” [Before the
commttee was CSHB 212( STA). ]

1: 37: 53 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- April 3, 2012



JESSI CA LU KEN, as a C ose-Up student requestor of the bill, on
behal f of the sponsor, Representative Charisse Mllett,
i ntroduced herself. She said she was a C ose-Up student and as
part of the C ose-Up program she was required to bring a project
to a state Representative or Senator. She related that her
project resulted in HB 212 when Representative M| lett agreed to
sponsor HB 212 at Ms. Luiken's request. She explained the bil
woul d require provisional license holders to display stickers on
their car. She indicated she agrees wth the proposed
amendnent s.

1: 38: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renmarked that his wife was M. Luiken's
teacher for the C ose-Up program

1:39: 52 PM

M LES BROOKES, Staff, Representative Max G uenberg, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, introduced hinself.

1: 40: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG made a notion to adopt Amendnment 1,
| abel ed 27-LS0738\B. 6, Luckhaupt, 4/2/12, which read as foll ows:

Page 1, line 5, followng "each "
| nsert "notor"

Page 1, line 7, followng "sticker.":

Insert "The departnent nay by regulation exenpt
the operation of certain types of notor vehicles from
the requirenment to display a sticker wunder this
subsection.”

VICE CHAIR Pruitt objected for the purpose of discussion.
1:40: 36 PM

MR. BROOKES stated that Amendnent 1 was developed after
di scussions with the Dvision of Mtor Vehicles (DW). He
explained that there could be vehicles as defined broadly in
statute as, (16) "nmotor vehicle" neans a vehicle which is self-
propel | ed except a vehicle noved by human or animl power;" and
in some areas all-terrain vehicles (ATV) or snow nachi nes may be

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- April 3, 2012



allowed on a road system He said that under the bill these
vehi cl es woul d be required to have a provisional sticker.

1:41: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that M. Brewster asked to
list the types of vehicles that are exenpt. He asked his staff
to list the types of vehicles.

MR. BROCOKES responded that the vehicles that would be exenpt
under Anmendnent 1 are ATVs, snow machi nes, notorcycles, or notor
driven scooters.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if the sponsor, M. Luiken, and
the DW is agreeabl e.

1:42: 20 PM

JEFF TURNER, Staff, Representative Charisse Mllett, Al aska
State Legislature, answered yes. He said that Representative
MIllett supports Amendnent 1.

M5. LU KEN agreed with Anendnent 1.

1:43: 01 PM

VWH TNEY BREWSTER, Director, Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Department of Admnistration (DOA), stated that the DW i
agreeabl e to Anendnent 1.

1:43:22 PM

VICE CHAIR PRUTT renoved his objection. There being no
obj ection, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

1:43: 37 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 2,
| abel ed as Conceptual Amendnent , which read, as follows
[original punctuation provided]:
Page 1, line 6, after "licensee."
Insert "If he DW chooses a |ocation other than

the rear window to display the sticker, it shall do so
by regul ation.”

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- April 3, 2012



VICE CHAIR PRUI TT obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
1:43:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked his staff to explain Conceptual
Amrendnent 2.

MR. BROOKES stated that Conceptual Anmendnment 2 was devel oped
after holding discussions wth the D vision of Mtor Vehicles
(DW) and the bill sponsor. He explained that there may be
vehicles that are covered by the bill but do not have a rear
wi ndow. He stated that the DW could adopt a regulation to
indicate an area other than the rear window in the event that a
wi ndow i s not avail abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cl arified that the Conceptual Amendnent
2 is not limted to vehicles wthout rear w ndows, but wll give
the DW the right to determne the specific location if it
wi shes to do so.

1:44: 50 PM

VICE CHAIR PRU TT asked whether provisional |icenses are issued
for notorcycl es.

M5. BREWSTER answered yes. She said there is a provisional
license for Cass D and notorcycles.

VICE CHAIR PRUTT answered that this gives the DWW an
opportunity to decide where to place a sticker or decal.

M5. LU KEN answered yes, that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether the sponsor, M. Luiken,
and the DW is agreeable to Conceptual Amendnent 2.

MR. TURNER answer ed yes.
MS. LU KEN answered yes.
M5. BREWSTER answered yes, DW agrees with Anendnent 2.

VICE CHAIR PRUI TT renoved his objection. There being no further
obj ection, Conceptual Anendnent 2 was adopt ed.

1:46: 36 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- April 3, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG made a notion to adopt Amendment 3,
| abel ed 27-LS0738\B. 3, Luckhaupt 4/ 2/ 12, whi ch read, as
fol |l ows:

Page 2, following line 4:
I nsert a new subsection to read:
"(d) The requirenent in (b) of this section does

not apply to

(1) provi sional |icenses issued to persons
to operate notor vehicles in areas of the state off
the road system when operating notor vehicles in those
areas; and

(2) a person holding a provisional |icense
when the person is operating a notor vehicle in a
muni cipality with a popul ation of |ess than 500."

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
1:46: 57 PM

MR. BROOKES stated that Anendnent 3 stemmed from concerns raised
by the DW in ternms of applying this to rural areas of the

state. He explained that in sonme areas the traffic count is
| ess than 500 vehicles and sonme areas in have popul ations of
| ess than 500 people. Additionally, sone villages have |ess
than two mles of roads and the provisional |icense nmay not
apply.

1:47: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out nenbers should have a
lengthy Ilist of locations that neet this requirenent. He
expl ai ned when the population exceeds 500 that the village is
removed from the |Iist. He asked whether the sponsor, M.

Lui ken, and the DW have any objections to Anendnent 3.

MR. TURNER answered that the sponsor agrees with Amendnent 3.
MS. LU KEN agreed with Anendnent 3.

MS. BREWSTER answered that the DW is agreeable to Anendnent 3.

1: 48: 29 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- April 3, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to line 5, and pointed out
that he has crossed out "or" and inserted "and" per the DW' s
request .

M5. BREWSTER answered that is correct. She stated that there
was sone concern that not having a definition of what 1is
considered a road system would | eave conmunities such as Juneau,
Ket chi kan, and Sitka are exenpt under the bill. She expl ai ned
that the DW prefers that the road system requirenent still be
allowed for the exenption, but also includes the caveat of 500
or less to ensure an exenption for those areas that are truly
rural .

1: 49: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whether a nunicipality of |ess
than 500 chose to be included in the programif the nmunicipality
coul d be i ncl uded.

M5. BREWSTER said she was not sure how to answer. She offered
that it is nore of a question for |ocal governnent if they chose
to opt in to the program She offered her belief that |ocal |aw
enforcement could provide enforcenent iif the ordinance was
adopt ed.

1: 50: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE asked for clarification on how HB 212 woul d
af fect soneone who operates a vehicle off the road system He
related a scenario in which he buys an off road vehicle for his
daughter who would only use it off the road system He asked
whet her the point of the bill is renmove off-road vehicles from
the requirement or if it is intended to exenpt small vill ages.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG responded that the way Amendnent 3 is
drafted, in order to not be required to have the sticker, both
paragraphs (1) and (2) would need to be satisfied. Thus the
vehicle would have to be operated off the road system and al so
operated in nunicipality of |ess than 500. He concluded that a
person not in a municipality who lives off the road system woul d
not need to conply.

M5. BREWSTER answered agreed, that is her understanding, as
wel | .

1: 52: 45 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- April 3, 2012



VICE CHAIR PRU TT asked whether an individual who holds a
provisional license and lives in an area that fits into the
requi renents, but visits Anchorage - which is on road system -
woul d need a sticker during tinme spent in the urban area.

M5. BREWSTER answered yes; it was her understanding the person
visiting Anchorage would be required to display the provisiona
sticker.

1: 53: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE asked whether a person would need a
driver's license to operate a vehicle off the road system

M5. BREWSTER answered yes; that anyone operating a vehicle on a
public roadway is required to be |icensed.

REPRESENTATIVE FEIGE related a scenario in which a person is
nmoose hunting off the road north of Eureka. He commented that
the license requirenent for operating a vehicle on a state
roadway nmade sense. He renoved his objection.

1:55: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that part of the record
should include the list of municipalities and he al so hopes M.
Brewster has the |ist.

M5. BREWSTER answered that she can followup with staff after
the hearing and will obtain the |ist.

1: 55: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recalled that Representative Petersen
asked whether a nunicipality could opt-in to the program in HB
212, but he did was unsure the current |anguage envisioned a
muni ci pality opting-in to the program

M5. BREWSTER of fered her belief believe a nmunicipality can adopt
an ordinance to opt-in, although she would defer to the DOL.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG concurred that the nunicipality would
do so by adoption of a |ocal ordinance.

VICE CHAIR PRUTT stated there being no further objection,
Amendnent 3 is adopt ed.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- April 3, 2012



1: 57: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG made a notion to adopt Amendnent 4,
| abel ed 27-LS0738\B. 4, Luckhaupt 4/ 2/ 12, whi ch read, as
fol |l ows:

Page 1, line 1, following "licenses":
Insert "; and providing for an effective date"

Page 2, following |line 4:
Insert new bill sections to read:

"* Sec. 2. AS 28.15.055(b) and 28.15.055(c) are
repeal ed Decenber 31, 2016

* Sec. 3. This Act takes effect January 1, 2013."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to line 6, which allows the
| egislature to reconsider the bill during the sunset of Decenber
31, 2016. He offered his belief that four years seened to be a
reasonabl e period of time to obtain a track record. The second
part of the Anmendnent would delay the effective date to January
1, 2013 to allow tinme for young people and their famlies to be
aware of the |aw.

1: 58: 46 PM

MR. BROOKES added that the delayed effective date was added
since 6,000 provisional |licensees exist and this would avoid
having the bulk of them to need to conply. He expl ai ned that
New Jersey has had the program in effect for two years, but
there is not a |lot of data avail able. He offered that a four-
year w ndow would allow tinme to study the data and if the
program is a good program the legislature could extend it or it
will expire

VICE CHAIR PRU TT objected for purpose of discussion. He asked
how t he DW woul d envision this programwoul d be inpl enent ed.

2:00: 19 PM

M5. BREWSTER offered her belief there would be extensive public
out r each. The DW would likely contact the existing 6,000
provisional licensees to let them know about the requirenments
She related that for new provisional |icensees the sticker would

be given out at tine the license is issued.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- April 3, 2012



VICE CHAIR PRUI TT related his understanding there would need to
be outreach by the DW to everyone to advise them to get their
sticker.

M5. BREWSTER responded that that the DW could send |icensees
the provisional sticker at time of notification. She cauti oned
agai nst overly burdening the custoner if there is another neans
to distribute the sticker.

VICE CHAIR PRU TT stated that he is not objecting to the January

1 date, but does not want to burden people. He asked whet her
the |anguage should indicate the sticker will be issued with
every new |license after January 1, 2013, as opposed to capturing
those currently hold provisional |icenses.

M5. BREWSTER agreed it would be hel pful.
2:02:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he did not a problem with that
aspect of the bill. He inquired as to whether the DW could
notify licensees by mail or e-mail so the licensees can apply
on-line or if the bill needs to be anended.

M5. BREWSTER answered that she did not think the bill needed to
be anended. She highlighted that the bill does not specifically

require people to apply for the sticker. She expl ained that
sinply having provisional I|icenses would automatically make
licensees eligible for the sticker. She agreed the DW could

correspond via mail to get them the sticker versus requiring
themto cone into an office.

2:03: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNCOZ asked Ms. Brewster to coment on the sunset
provi si on.

V. BREWSTER stated that a sunset provision is easily
i npl enented at the DW and the DW does not have strong feelings
on the sunset provision, which is a policy call.

2:04:16 PM
REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whether provisional |icenses are
call ed provisional licenses for the first six nonths.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- April 3, 2012



M5. BREWSTER answered that it is dependent upon the individual
She explained that if the person receives a traffic violation
the provisional requirenents are extended another six nonths
fromthe conviction date. She stated that in the best case the
provi sional license would be a six-nonth provision or it could
continue wuntil they were 18, depending on the individual's
driving record.

2:05: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whether the DW would be able to
tell provisional |icensees that they may need sticker.

MS. BREWSTER asked whether he was referring to permt hol ders.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whether the DW would notify

everyone who receives provisional |icense on and after July 1,
which is six nmonths prior to the effective date to inform them
they will need to get a sticker when the |law goes into effect.

He suggested that would avoid the issue of having to contact
themat a later tine.

M5. BREWSTER agreed the DW could certainly do so, could also
have posters in office, and nake sure DW s enpl oyees are aware
of the new requirenents.

2:06:42 PM

VICE CHAIR PRU TT expressed two concerns with that concept; one,
that it may be difficult for 16 year-olds to renenber to cone
back in to the DW by end of year for the sticker. Second, nost
may delay and conme in one to two weeks before the end of January
and create a rush for the DW.

2:07:24 PM
VICE CHAIR PRU TT nmade a notion to adopt Conceptual Amendment 1
to Anendnment 4, on line 7 after, add, "for provisional |icenses

i ssued after January 1, 2013."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested the amendnent to Anmendnent 4
shoul d be conceptual .

REPRESENTATI VE PRUI TT agr eed.

There being no objection, Conceptual Anmendnent 1 to Anendnent 4
was adopt ed.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- April 3, 2012



2:08: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whet her the sponsor, M. Luiken
and the DW supports Amendnent 4, as anended.

MR. TURNER answered that the sponsor is fine with Arendnent 4.
M5. LU KEN answered that she approves Amendnent 4.

M5. BREWSTER answered that the DW is agreeable, to Amendnent 4,
as amended.

VICE CHAIR PRU TT renoved his objection. There being no further
obj ection, Anendnent 4, as anended, was adopted.

2:09: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG pointed out that several anendnents
were previously adopted. He asked whether the anendnents shoul d
be renunmbered and staff responded the anendnment nunbering was
fine.

2:10: 09 PM
The committee took an at-ease from2:10 p.m to 2:11 p. m
2:11:02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FElI GE expressed concern about the requirenents
for the sticker since sone famly nenbers nmay operate farm
equi pnent . He asked whether an exenption is in order. He
referred to the statutes and noted a person when driving an
i npl enent of ani mal husbandry is exenpt froma driver's |icense.
He asked whether an anmendnent is necessary to exenpt
agricultural operations.

2:12:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to Amendnent 1, which allows
the departnment, by regulation, to exenpt certain types of notor
vehicles fromthe requirenent to display a sticker. He said it
is not his intent to have farm vehicles to conply even if the
farm vehicle is on the roadway. He agreed a pickup would need
to conply, but as the author of the anendnent clarified it was
not his intention to have the requirenent apply to farm
i mpl ement s. He pointed out that he |isted sone vehicles as

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- April 3, 2012



illustrative to provide legislative history. He asked whet her
the farm inplenments should be listed or if doing so would
suffice for the DW' s purposes.

MS. BREWSTER answered that it would not be the DW' s intent to
i nclude vehicles of aninmal husbandry as vehicles needing the

provi sional sticker. As Representative Feige indicated earlier,
a person is not required to be licensed to operate those types
of vehicles. If the vehicles are operated on a public roadway

they are allowed for crossing and are not to be utilized to
operate on the roadway. She offered her belief that they do not
need to be exenption, but she offered to further consult wth
the Departnent of Law. She reiterated that these individuals
are not required to have a license to operate the vehicles so
she doubted an exenption was necessary.

2:15:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE said he could foresee parcels of |and not
necessarily connected except by road. He could envision that
the farner may have to nobve equipnent along |ocal road. He

suggested that the conmmttee may wish to express its intent. He
referred to AS 28.990, and stated that farm vehicles and

exenpted from being comercial vehicles. He read, "Farm
vehicles that are controlled and operated by a farner used to
transport agricul tural product s, farm nmachi nery, or farm

supplies to or fromthat farmers farm not using the operations
of a comon or contract notor carrier and used within 150 mles
of a farmer's farm" He suggested that any vehicle operated
under that | anguage woul d be exenpt fromusing the sticker.

2:16: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested the commttee has a choice of
placing the language in statute or the clarification could be
done by regulation, noting the conmttee's intent that the
regul ation specifically exenpts those farm vehicles.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether this provides sufficient
directive to the DW.

M5. BREWSTER answered absol utely.
2:17:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FEIGE nobved to report the CSHB 212 (STA), as
anended, out of commttee with individual recomendati ons and

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -13- April 3, 2012



t he acconpanying zero fiscal note. There being no objection,
the CSHB 212(TRA) was reported from the House Transportation
Standing Comm ttee.

2:19:11 PM

ADJ OURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Transportation Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 2:19
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -14- April 3, 2012



